
 

Camberwell Community Council 
 

Wednesday 25 April 2012 
7.00 pm 

Lettsom Tenants Hall, 114 Vestry Road, London SE5 8PQ 
 

Membership 
 

 

Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair) 
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Kevin Ahern 
Councillor Stephen Govier 
Councillor Peter John 
Councillor the Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole 
Councillor Veronica Ward 
Councillor Mark Williams 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 

 

 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Eleanor Kelly 
Acting Chief Executive 
Date: Tuesday 17 April 2012 
 

 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item 
No. 

Title  

 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES  
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interest or dispensation and the nature 
of that interest or dispensation which they may have in any of the items 
under consideration at this meeting. 
 
 

 

Open Agenda



 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 

 The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda. 
 
 

 

5. MINUTES (Pages 4 - 14) 
 

 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 6 March 
2012. 
 
 

 

6. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS (Pages 15 - 16) 
 

7.10 pm 

  
• Launch of the Community Council Fund 2012 -13  

 
• Changes to community council areas – for information.  

 
• Poppy Appeal – Alice Fisher from the British Legion.  

 
• Camberwell Consolidated Charities. 
 
• Public engagement from Southwark Business Support Unit (PCT) 

about future of health services in the Dulwich area (stretches into 
Camberwell). 

 
• Camberwell Business Forum 

 
 

 

7. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (Pages 17 - 19) 
 

7.40 pm 

 To consider any deputation requests or petitions at the meeting.  
 
• To hear a deputation from a group of residents from Shenley and 

Linnell Roads (SE5) regarding Lucas Gardens Controlled Parking 
Zone. 

 

 



 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 
 

8. PARKING ISSUES IN CAMBERWELL  
 

7.50 pm 

 • Brief introduction on parking  
 

• History on parking issues in the borough: What was before CPZ, 
why was it introduced, how did the council deal with control parking 
or nuisance parking? 

 
• Details about car ownership and data on car accidents in the 

Camberwell area. 
 

• How people can make representations to the council on parking 
issues: Introduction to CPZ in local area, wrongly issued parking 
tickets, wheel camped, parking enforcement and disabled 
designated parking bays? 

 
• Process of the decision making process: How it works within the 

council when cabinet member makes final decision? 
 

 

 BREAK AT 8.35 PM 
 

 

 Opportunity for residents to chat to Councillors and Officers 
 

 

9. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (Pages 20 - 21) 
 

8.45 pm 

 This is an opportunity for public questions addressed to the chair. 
 
Residents or persons working in the borough may ask questions on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties. 
 
Response may be supplied in writing following the meeting.  
 
 

 

10. CLEANER GREENER SAFER REVENUE FUND (Pages 22 - 26) 
 

8.55 pm 

 Executive Function  
 
Members to consider the Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) revenue funding 
for schemes contained in the report. 
 

 

11. LOCAL PARKING AMENDMENTS (Pages 27 - 34) 
 

9.05 pm 

 Executive Function  
 
Members to consider the local parking schemes contained within the 
report. 
 

 



 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 
 

12. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 

 That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2, Access to Information 
Procedure rules of the Constitution. 
 
 

 

13. LEA SCHOOL GOVERNOR APPOINTMENTS  
 

 

 Executive Function  
 
Members to consider report contained in the closed agenda. 
 
 

 

 
Date:  Tuesday 17 April 2012 
 



  
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
CONTACT: Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, Tel: 020 7525 
7234 or email: beverley.olamijulo@southwark.gov.uk  
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

On request, agendas and reports will be supplied to members of the 
public, except if they contain confidential or exempted information. 

 

ACCESSIBLE MEETINGS  

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For 
further details on building access, translation and interpreting services, 
the provision of signers and other access requirements, please contact 
the Constitutional Officer. 

Disabled members of the public, who wish to attend community council 
meetings and require transport assistance in order to attend, are 
requested to contact the Constitutional Officer. The Constitutional 
Officer will try to arrange transport to and from the meeting. There will 
be no charge to the person requiring transport. Please note that it is 
necessary to contact us as far in advance as possible, and at least 
three working days before the meeting.  

 

BABYSITTING/CARERS’ ALLOWANCES 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look 
after your children or an elderly or disabled dependant, so that you can 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  
Please collect a claim form from the Constitutional Officer at the 
meeting.  

 
DEPUTATIONS 
Deputations provide the opportunity for a group of people who are 
resident or working in the borough to make a formal representation of 
their views at the meeting. Deputations have to be regarding an issue 
within the direct responsibility of the Council. For further information on 
deputations, please contact the Constitutional Officer.  
 
 

For a large print copy of this pack, 
please telephone 020 7525 7234.  
 
 

 

Agenda Annex
1



Camberwell Community Council

Language Needs
If you would like information on the Community Councils translated into your
language please telephone 020 7525 7385 or visit the officers at 160 Tooley
Street, London SE1 2TZ

Spanish:

Necesidades de Idioma
Si usted desea información sobre los Municipios de la Comunidad traducida a
su idioma por favor llame al 020 7525 7385 o visite a los oficiales de 160 Tooley
Street, Londres SE1 2TZ

French:

Besoins de Langue
Si vous désirez obtenir des renseignements sur les Community Councils traduits
dans votre langue, veuillez appeler le 020 7525 7385 ou allez voir nos agents à
160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Bengali :

fvlvi cÖ‡qvRb

Avcwb hw` wb‡Ri fvlvq KwgDwbwU KvDwÝj m¤ú‡K© Z_¨ †c‡Z Pvb Zvn‡j 020 7525 7385 b¤̂‡i
†dvb Ki“b A_ev 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ wVKvbvq wM‡q Awdmvi‡`i mv‡_ †`Lv

Ki“b|

Yoruba:

Awon Kosemani Fun Ede
Bi o ba nfe àlàyé kíkún l’ori awon Ìgbìmò Àwùjo ti a se ayipada si ede abínibí re,

ojúlé 160 Tooley Street , London SE1 2TZ .

Turkish:

2



Igbo:

Asusu
I choo imata gwasara Council na asusu gi ikpoo ha n’okara igwe 020 7525 7385
ma obu igaa hu ndi oru ha na 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Krio:

Na oose language you want
If you lek for sabi all tin but Community Council na you yone language, do ya
telephone 020 7525 7385 or you kin go talk to dee officers dem na 160 Tooley
Treet, London SE1 2TZ.

Twi:

Kasaa ohohia,
se wopese wo hu nsem fa Community Councils ho a, sesa saakasa yie ko wo
kuro kasa mu. wo be tumi afre saa ahoma torofo yie 020 7525 7385 anase ko sra
inpanyinfo wo 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2Tz.

3



1 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 6 March 2012 
 

 
 

CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES of the Camberwell Community Council held on Tuesday 6 March 2012 at 
7.00 pm at Brandon 3 Retired Citizens Club, 1 Grimsal Path, Warham Street, London 
SE5  0TB  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair) 

Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Kevin Ahern 
Councillor Stephen Govier 
Councillor Peter John 
Councillor the Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole 
Councillor Veronica Ward 
Councillor Mark Williams 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

Des Waters, Head of Public Realm 
Paul Cowell, Events Manager 
John Kissi, Flood Risk Asset Officer 
Kate Johnson, Planning Policy Officer 
Abdi Mohamed Ibrahim, Neighbourhood Coordinator 
Grace Semakula, Community Council Development Officer 
Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer  
 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 
 

 

 The chair welcomed councillors, members of the public and officers to the meeting. 
 

2. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 Apologies for lateness were received from Councillors Mark Williams and Ian Wingfield.  
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 There were none. 
 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 
 

 

Agenda Item 5
4



2 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 6 March 2012 
 

 There were none. 
 

5. MINUTES 
 

 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on the 10 January 2012 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the chair. 

 

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY) 
 

 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the deputation request from Save Camberwell Orchard Campaign be heard. 
 
The deputation spokesperson, Donnachadh McCarthy, a representative of the Save 
Camberwell Orchard Campaign addressed the meeting.  He said the purpose of the 
deputation was to highlight their campaign about protecting Camberwell Green Community 
Orchard.  
 
Donnachadh explained that they sought funding for the orchard in the early 1980’s and 
1990’s so it remained a community green space.  Concern was expressed about the new 
Camberwell Library being built there as recent consultation on the library proposals did not 
indicate where the preferred location would be.   
 
The Camberwell area had the highest need for local open space particularly with the 
increased density of the community area, it was very deprived of open space.   
 
Donnachadh also mentioned that the new library could be integrated with major 
regeneration projects or the Camberwell Leisure Centre. That could save the council a lot 
of money if it could be done that way.  He requested that the Camberwell community 
council ask officers to undertake a feasibility study with costings, and to feedback details 
to the community council.  
 
In response to the questions, Councillor Veronica Ward explained that no decision had 
been made on where library would be.  She said it was important to stress that 
Camberwell was desperately in need of a library service in the middle of Camberwell as 
the present one in this modern age was totally unacceptable.   
 
Councillor Peter John responded to a question regarding a S106 agreement that involved 
a  free library would be built - he stated that any regeneration scheme would have a  cost 
that might involve some improvements to an area that could also include affordable 
housing.  Possible options and locations for the library would be looked at however it was 
important to note that things do move forward on this issue. 
 
The chair thanked the representative for the deputation and took on board the comments 
that were made at the meeting. 
 
 

5



3 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 6 March 2012 
 

7. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 

 

 Community announcements: 
 
The chair announced that Camberwell Library would be considered at a later meeting.  
Camberwell Consolidated Charities and the Cleaner Greener Safer Revenue Fund would 
be presented at the next community council in April 2012. 
 
Bowel  Cancer – a spokesperson for the organisation explained that Bowel Cancer UK 
consists of a small network of local people that have raised awareness of Bowel Cancer in 
the UK and want to urge more people to do this.  Further information and handouts were 
provided at the meeting which included what signs and symptoms to look for, like bleeding 
when going to the toilet and pains in the stomach. 
 
The risk factors are for people over 50 or those that have a family history of the illness.  
The representative said the simple steps would be taking a bowel sample that could be 
tested by the screening centre.  The spokesperson was also available at the break to 
respond to questions. 
 
For information please refer to the website www.bowelcanceruk.org.uk  
 
 

8. COMMUNITY SAFETY UPDATES FROM THE SAFER 
NEIGHBOURHOOD TEAMS 

 

 

 PC Joe Meares based at Brunswick and South Camberwell safer neighbourhoods team 
reported on the ward priorities which arose out of the police ward panel meetings in the 
Camberwell Community Council area: 
 
Brunswick Park ward priorities 
 

• Motor vehicle crime – South side of Peckham Road, the team were leaflet dropping 
in the area to raise awareness and not to leave valuables on show. 

• Neighbourhood watch scheme has been set up in Shenley Road/Bushey Hill Road, 
SE5 – to put together intelligence gathering in these areas to help target known 
individuals that had committed offences. 

 
• Burglary awareness – people were encouraged to jot down the serial numbers for 

items like iPads, televisions or any other electrical items in case they are stolen it 
would make it easier to locate when goods are recovered. 

 
• Routine visits to known burglars to gather intelligence so the police know their 

whereabouts at all times of the day. 
 
• Anti social behaviour (ASB) on the Estates – a number of reported calls referred to 

people that were gathering in the stairwells.  As a result of regular patrols in the 
area this has now been reduced. 

 

6



4 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 6 March 2012 
 

• Stop and Search continues to take place in the local area.  
 
South Camberwell ward priorities 
 

• One residential burglary that was captured on CCTV – the person in question had 
been arrested.  People were encouraged to report any offences especially if 
residents had their own CCTVs. 

• Youth engagement on the East Dulwich Estate, Albrighton Youth Club on 
Tuesdays and Thursdays, and a PCSO would be present at these sessions if there 
were any issues that needed to be discussed with them.  The SNT are trying a 
different approach for youths to gain their trust. 
 

• ASB on the Denmark Hill Estate – three families were not getting on, have caused 
problems on the estate mainly related to disorder offences.  The SNT would 
monitor any repercussions as a result of an arrest of one family member. 
 

• The theft of push bikes was on the increase, some of the stolen bikes are very 
expensive (£2,000 value) and were known to be advertised on ‘Gum Tree’ auction 
website. 

 
Camberwell Green ward priorities 
 

• Street drinking – the SNT recently seized alcohol from 21 people and have 
continued to work closely with the community wardens on this.  If street drinkers 
refuse to hand over the liquor then they would receive a £30 penalty fine. 

 
• Anti social behaviour (ASB) on Poet’s Estate which involved tenancy enforcement.   

 
• Dealing with irresponsible shopkeepers, two arrests were made for drug offences 

and one (drug related) stabbing. 
 

• ASB on the Crawford Estate – working with SNT in Lambeth which involved a 
combined operation to deal with gangs on the estate. Also officers undertook a 
weapons sweep on the estate which included several arrests for possession of 
drugs. 

 
Staff Changes:  
 
PC Joe Meares reported that as of the 2 April 2012 he would be moving on as an 
Inspector at Greenwich Police and Sergeant Leighton would be moving to Lambeth Police 
as an Inspector. 
 
In response to questions, PC Meares spoke about the training times for community 
wardens which he agreed to check.  Hate crime is dealt with by the community safety unit 
who are also responsible for domestic violence.  In order to tackle robbery and muggings 
in the area, there would be uniform support of the police as well as those in unmarked 
cars.  They also help with the local neighbourhood watch schemes and briefings. 

7



5 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 6 March 2012 
 

 
The chair thanked PC Joe Meares for his presentation and wished him all the best for the 
future. 
 

9. MAIN THEME: CAMBERWELL AND THE OLYMPICS - PART I 
 

 

 This item was introduced by Councillor Veronica Ward, cabinet member for culture, 
leisure, sport and the Olympics who said that Southwark residents were involved in the 
Olympics and local events, e.g. 200th year anniversary of Charles Dickens so there would 
be lots of visitors.  Also the capital legacy fund would help provide new sport facilities to 
help promote health, fitness and wellbeing that are linked with the cultural experiences that 
are available in the borough. 
 
Paul Cowell, Events Manager outlined Southwark’s vision for the Olympics, stating that it 
would be the largest event in the world where there should be opportunities to promote 
health and wellbeing and enable young people to attend the games in the borough. 
 
Paul said the Southwark Olympic Delivery Board which consisted of local stakeholders 
and duties of the sub planning group which had been set up to ensure Southwark 
supported this inspiring, safe and inclusive games.   
 
The different work streams included: employment, transport, operations, health, capital 
legacy fund, sport, accreditation and volunteering.   
 
Andrew from the Youth Service in Children’s Services outlined that Schools had signed up 
to “the Get set” network to enable them to apply for free Olympic tickets.  Sport events 
have been organised to encourage young people to volunteer and to become sports 
leaders.  There were also a wide variety of cultural and arts events and projects for young 
people to take up sport or any other activities so they remain active.  The cultural 
institutions for some of these activities include: The Globe, Tate Modern and Dulwich 
Picture Gallery.   
 
Andrew mentioned that volunteering amongst young people was being encouraged by 
signposting them on so they receive accreditation. The AQA (Assessment and 
Qualifications Alliance) for young people includes the Duke of Edinburgh award.  Such 
accreditation for young people could be used as transferable skills and work experience 
when they were looking for jobs.  A representative from the Youth Community Council 
suggested Andrew attend a meeting of the YCC to present these ideas to them.  
 
Key Dates 
Torch relay – 21 July 2012 arrives in London 
Olympics opening ceremony – 27 July 2012 
Olympics closing ceremony – 12 August 2012 
Paralympics opening ceremony – 29 August 2012 
Paralympics closing ceremony – 9 September 2012 
 
Des Waters, Head of Public Realm explained the impact the Games would have on 
services and public transport: journeys to and from work (commute), business travel and 
deliveries to local businesses.  The key locations are Canada Water and London Bridge 
Station – with busier times being during the day. None of the roads in Southwark would be 

8



6 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 6 March 2012 
 

affected although there is likely to be some displacement for some users that might decide 
to come into Southwark.  The likelihood is that roads in the north part of the borough are 
going to be affected by other events so the decision would be to close those roads.   
 
Des reported that no planned road works with the exception of emergency road works 
would be permitted.  Between the 5 - 12 August 2012, there could be minor changes to the 
traffic signals in the area.  The council has asked road network organisations not to carry 
out any road works during this time.    
In response to questions the following details were noted: 
 

• There would be delays at London Bridge railway station people were advised to 
take alternative routes and avoid travelling between 5pm – 7pm in the evening.   

 
Des agreed to provide Cllr Stephen Govier with a written answer on the transport/travel 
arrangements as soon it becomes available. 
 

• Those that do not have access to the internet should listen to the local radio; look 
out for information on leaflets and posters. 

 
• During the Games there is to be improved accessibility, better signage and sign 

posting for people with disabilities. 
 

• Barclays cycle hire - distribution would be extended to the Olympic Park.  
   

• Camberwell Baths – no changing facilities for wheelchair users – Cllr Veronica 
Ward agreed to take this matter and provide a written response at the next 
meeting. 

 
• Young people participation – leaflets would be printed and distributed to encourage 

their participation. 
 

• A brochure would be published just before the Diamond Jubilee listing information 
on Southwark Experience, cultural activities events at the Globe Theatre, 
Peckham, Tate Modern, Thames Festival, London 2012 Festival and other indoor 
and outdoor events around the borough.  

 
• Volunteering fairs are being organised for local groups.  

 
• Health Factor Challenge which was delivered in 2011 involved providing nutritional 

advice and raising awareness about health and wellbeing across the borough – 
cycling and walking.  

 
• Capital legacy – led by the Leader of the Council to help increase participation in 

sport; groups and organisations could bid for money. Ten projects in Camberwell 
area were identified and had received funding. 

 
• Lists of projects included the upgrading and refurbishment of Bethwin Sports 

MUGA gym, new BMX track in Burgess Park and the Camberwell Leisure Centre. 
 
The chair thanked Des Waters and his team for their presentations and the hard work they 

9



7 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 6 March 2012 
 

have done on this. 
 

10. PRELIMINARY FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT 
 

 

 John Kissi from the Flood Risk Asset Team spoke about the flood risk assessment and 
surface water management plan.   
 
Summary of the presentation  
 
The Camberwell area is more susceptible for surface water flooding which could affect 
sewerage capacity.  Therefore the council was undertaking a detailed investigation, in 
order to reduce the likelihood of flooding. 
 
The council worked closely with the Environment Agency and were looking at ways to 
seek funding from other agencies so as to reduce the impact of flooding. 
 
Flooding occurs when large amounts of water accumulate on previously dry land.  
 
Historical Flooding  

• Widespread flooding in 2004, also affected Southwark  
• Put flooding on the national agenda  
• Summer of 2007, Yorkshire, Gloucestershire and others 
• Total cost of £3.2 billion 
• Average cost, businesses £75,000 to £112,000 
• Average cost, households £23,000 to £30,000 

 
Future flooding could get worse 

• Climate change 
• Wetter winters 
• More intense rainfall 
• Rising water table (winter) 
• Increased interaction between flooding sources 
• Increased likelihood of flooding 
• London clay; little infiltration, more run off 

 
Response – legislation  

• EU Flood Directive (2007/60/EC) (Pitt Review, Flood Risk Regulations 2009) 
• Flood and Water Management Act 2010 

 
Action – what the council has done 

• Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment  
§ Significant flood risk 
§ Critical drainage areas 
§ Consequences of past and future flooding 

 
• Surface Water Management Plan 

§ Flooding - sources and mechanisms 
§ Investment – reduce likelihood of flooding   
§ Community engagement – reduce impact   

 

10



8 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 6 March 2012 
 

Actions - what can you do?  
• Individual flood plan – information available on the environment 

agency website http://publications.environment-agency.gov.uk/  
• Water conservation 
• Rain water harvesting  
• Community Flood Plans: flood wardens or flood champions - the officer present 

asked for volunteers from the community council area 
 
Next steps 

• Submit ideas to EA for funding  
• Initiate detailed consultation  
• Obtain local knowledge  
• Develop and implement  

 
For more information on Flood Risk Management in Southwark contact John Kissi, Flood 
Risk Manager, john.kissi@southwark.gov.uk or telephone number 020 7525 2 
 
 

11. CAMBERWELL AND THE OLYMPICS - PART II 
 

 

 The item on the Olympics was taken in the earlier part of the meeting.  
 

12. OPEN SPACES STRATEGY CONSULTATION 
 

 

 Kate Johnson, Planning Policy Officer, presented the Open Space Strategy and 
highlighted the following: 
 

• The open space strategy sets out a framework for open space provision in the 
borough.  

 
• The open space strategy replaces work previously undertaken in 2003 and 

updates the work carried out in 2010.  
 

• The document would make up an important part of the evidence base needed in 
the preparation of planning policy documents.  

 
• Public consultation on the draft strategy is to run until 24 April 2012.  

 
• The council plan to adopt the final strategy in September 2012.  

 
Site audit 
 
As part of the preparation of the strategy, a site audit of all existing open spaces had taken 
place in the area.  The audit had found that open space is generally of high quality. 
 

• Many spaces hold cultural events – strong focus for local communities.  
• Perform a varied range of functions.  
• Spaces are generally well utilised with a good range of facilities.  

 

11



9 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 6 March 2012 
 

Accessibility 
 

• Small sections of Nunhead and North Dulwich were deficient in access to parks (all 
types).  

 
• Camberwell sub area lack larger open space and natural green space and deficient 

in access to parks.  
 
As part of the consultation process workshops were scheduled take place at Tooley Street 
offices on 17 March 2012 and on 22 March 2012 at Peckham Library.  
 
Residents should contact the planning policy team on 0207 525 5471. 
 
 

13. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 

 

 There were no public questions. 
 

14. CLEANER GREENER, SAFER (CGS) CAPITAL FUNDING 
ALLOCATION 2012 - 2013 

 

 

 Executive Function 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the following Cleaner Greener, Safer (CGS) schemes be allocated capital funding 
for 2012 – 2013: 
 

 
Reference Proposal Name Award Notes 

CGS115583 Path resurfacing at 72 Grove Lane £7,800   
CGS120288 Victorian landscaping, Brunswick Park £6,500   
CGS120044 Voltaire Communal Garden, Fenced off 

green space to rear of 7-10 Voltaire House, 
Sceaux Gardens Estate, Camberwell, SE5 
7DD. (Peckham Road side) 

£30,000   

CGS118962 Cleaner Greener Wells Way Corner £15,800   
CGS120448 Mary Boast Walk £5,000 Feasibility study 
CGS120446 New street lights in Artichoke Place £3,900 Preference for 

Victorian and 
traditional character 
lanterns, in keeping 
with the area 

118938 Social/Light/Safe £36,000 Award for lighting 
elements of 
proposal & cleaning 
or replacing existing 
lights 

12



10 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 6 March 2012 
 

118927 Camberwell Green park area improvement - 
Elmington Estate areas 

£9,800 New table tennis 
table and 
resurfacing around 
existing at 
Camberwell Green 

118924 Goschen play area £25,000 £5k feasibility & 
£20k seed funding 

CGS116823 Public footpath railings for new school 
entrance. 

£2,600 GRANT 

CGS119909 Garden Street Planters on Grosvenor Estate £28,800   

CGS120209 VIVE! (Vibrancy, Independance and Vitality 
in Elders) Growers - a food growing and 
gardening project at Southwark Pensioners 
Centre (SPC) 

£6,500   

CGS120302 Camberwell Green Open Air Art Gallery £6,500 Award not grant. 
Size and locations 
to be agreed. Not 
A0. Each project 
stage to be signed 
off and approved by 
Camberwell Green 
Cllrs 

CGS120082 Clubland Urban Garden Project in 
Camberwell 
 

£15,120   

118940 Brighter lighter the safer £23,800 2 new columns and 
repairs to existing 
lighting and 
damaged cabling 

120762 Ballcourt Denmark Hill Estate, SE5 £10,000 Feasibility study. 
Estate to apply for 
implementation 
funding 2013/14 

120033 Fence to Communal Garden 121-117 
Dylways and 4 flats above 

£1,950   

CGS115582 Additional bike lockers around East Dulwich 
station 

£7,150 Bike lockers to be 
within South 
Camberwell ward 
boundaries 

CGS118275 Security lighting and secure donation boxes £7,800 GRANT 

CGS118415 Greener, brighter gardens at Dog Kennel Hill 
Adventure Playground 

£9,749 PART GRANT 
(gardening), PART 
AWARD (lighting) 

TOTAL   £259,769 
  

 
 

13



11 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 6 March 2012 
 

 The meeting ended at 9.50 pm. 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

 

14



 1 

Briefing Note 
Name Camberwell Community Council 

Title Community Councils – Changes for 2012-13 

Report 
author Darryl Telles, Neighbourhoods Manager 

Date 25 April 2012 

 
REQUIRED ACTION 
 
To note the changes to Community Councils, agreed by Council Assembly, as a result of the 
Democracy Commission’s recommendations. 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
1. The Democracy Commission was asked by the Council in February 2011 to 

undertake a review of the work of the community councils, including resident 
consultation, which examined the role and function of community councils and 
whether the current functions and powers are the right ones to meet the aims of 
community councils in the current resource context.  Cabinet asked the 
Commission to identify at least £344,000 of savings. 

 
2. The commission reviewed efficiency savings for community councils and 

identified savings of £81,527. This relates to the budgets surrounding 
venue/transport hire, marketing/publicity, access and catering. However the 
efficiencies savings alone did not meet the overall savings target necessary and 
therefore the commission investigated other options for savings. 

 
3. The review concluded in December 2011 and the Commission concluded that 

savings could only be made if the number of Community Council areas, meetings 
and functions were reduced.  

 
KEY RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
• Reducing the number of community councils from 8 to 5 
• Reducing the number of meetings from at least 6 to 5 per year 
• Establishing 2 planning sub-committees for minor applications with 

revised thresholds for decisions going to the main planning committee 
and the two sub-committees 

• Removing school governor appointments and making changes to other 
areas of decision making such as transport 

• Making reductions to the staff 
 

CHANGES 
 
4. These changes were agreed by Council Assembly and come into effect from May 2012: 

• Merge Bermondsey and Rotherhithe Community Councils (retaining the 
current split of Livesey Ward between Bermondsey & Rotherhithe and 
Peckham & Nunhead)  

• Merge Peckham and Nunhead & Peckham Rye Community Councils 
• Retain the current boundaries of Dulwich Community Council 
• Retain the current boundaries of Camberwell Community Council 
• Merge Borough & Bankside and Walworth Community Councils. 

Agenda Item 6
15



 2 

 
5. Council Assembly also approved the commission’s recommendation that the 
 planning function is no longer exercised by community councils.  Instead a new 
 model of a main planning committee and two planning sub-committees will be 
 created.  
 
6. School governor decisions were reviewed by the commission and council 
 assembly agreed the commission’s recommendation that this function is no 
 longer exercised by community councils to generate a saving of £10,895.  It 
 was noted that these decisions are normally taken in closed session which is 
 not consistent with the engagement role of community councils. 
 
7. Given the context of the significant reductions in the council’s budget some 
 changes have had to be made to the officer support for this function as the 
 current cost was unsustainable.  The commission identified staffing savings from 
 the engagement function, which was agreed as part of the budget decision by 
 council assembly.  The new staffing structure reduces the overall number of 
 community engagement staff whilst retaining one dedicated officer for each of the 
 new five areas. 
 
8. The commission noted that residents see the cleaner, greener, safer and 
 Community fund schemes as evidence of them having an influence on local 
 decisions.  Having a say over how council funds are allocated at a local level is 
 valued and recognised as really putting power into the hands of residents.  
 Community councils should be encouraged to develop upon this model. The 
 commission welcomed the cleaner, greener, safer revenue funding of £10,000 
 per ward which would be available for community councils to allocate from 1 April 
 2012.  It also agreed that there would be no reduction to the Community fund for 
 this year. 
 
9. The Commission also recommended changes to the operation of Community 
 Councils and have asked Chairs to consider the following: 
 

• more flexibility around meeting times  
• varying the use of local venues  
• increasing the use of workshops to encourage debate and dialogue 
• enabling residents to have more influence over the agenda setting 

process 
• having question time earlier on in agendas 
• stricter chairing to enable balanced input from residents 
• keeping the length of meetings within a time limit e.g. two hours 
• better use of online forums and social media 
• introducing less formality to meetings was another popular suggestion 

made and would compliment the desire to improve engagement.  
People have expressed a preference for a horse-shoe or semi-circular 
seating arrangement at meetings (with further semi-circular rows 
behind), to create less “distance” between local people and members 
especially considering the increase in the number of Councillors for 
some Community Council areas 

• explore ways to simplify the paperwork to make it more accessible, 
e.g. plain English summaries of information items could be produced, 
provided adequate officer resource is available. 

 

16



 
Item No. 

7. 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
24 April 2012 

Meeting Name: 
Camberwell Community 
Council 
 

Report title: Deputation Request – Lucas Gardens Controlled 
Parking   
 
 

Ward(s) or groups affected: All wards within the Camberwell Community 
Council area 
 

From: Strategic Director of Communities, Law & 
Governance 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That the Camberwell Community Council consider a deputation request from 

a group of residents that live on Shenley Road and Linell Road.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2. Deputation requests have been submitted by representatives of those 
 mentioned above.  A deputation can be submitted by a person of any age 
 who lives, works or studies in Southwark.  Deputations must relate to matters 
 which the council has powers or duties or which affects Southwark. 
  
3. The deputation refers to a report on the implementation of Lucas Gardens 
 Controlled Parking Zone.   

 
A summary of the deputation states: 
 
“On 16 January 2012 the Lucas Gardens Controlled Parking Zone (LGCPZ) 
came into effect, operating Monday to Friday 08:30 to 18:30hrs. 
Displacement effects were foreseeable but ignored. The LGCPZ consultation, 
project reporting (including Community Impact Assessment), 
recommendations to decision makers, and implementation took no account of 
displacement effects or the wider local context within which the LGCPZ  was 
being implemented.  

 
 (i) Displacement occurred with immediate and (to date) persistent 
  negative impacts on roads outside of the LGCPZ during the hours of 
  operation. These include congestion, dangerous parking and loss of 
  amenity for local residents. Anecdotal evidence suggests that families 
  with young children have been especially adversely affected given the 
  difficulties they now face finding parking spaces within a reasonable 
  distance of their homes during the day.  
 

(ii) Residents living outside of the LGCPZ report persistent problems with 
 all-day non-residential parking Monday to Friday that were not as 
 apparent pre-LGCPZ.  

  
(iii) Post-implementation 'safe parking' levels 2, of which 'commuter or 

non-resident parking' was believed to account for around one quarter 
of parking inside the LGCPZ area.3 These data suggest that around 
two-thirds of the pre-CPZ parking has been  displaced or deterred by 

Agenda Item 7
17



the LGCPZ, of which a little less than half would have been ‘commuter 
or non-resident’ parking.  

 
(iv) Large parts of the LGCPZ have conspicuously low day time parking 

occupancy, especially where there are no residential addresses 
fronting the road. Of particular note, this includes the eastern (Lucas 
Gardens) side of Vestry Road, as well as the northern ends of Wilson 
and Dagmar Roads and the western section of Maude Road.  

 
(v) Concerns have been expressed about additional future parking 

pressures once a number of ongoing developments on Peckham 
Road are completed.  

 
We request Camberwell Community Council to:.  
 

• Consult residents on streets outside of the LGCPZ not presently covered 
by parking controls on options to manage on-street parking pressures, 
including a new/extended CPZ. (See Appendix 1 for a proposed list of 
streets to be consulted.)  

 
• Urgently review the implementation and operation of the LGCPZ with a 

view to moderating its impact on surrounding streets while still effectively 
managing parking pressures inside the LGCPZ area. (See Appendix 2 for 
a non-exhaustive list of suggestions of potential changes.)” 

 
4. At the meeting, the spokesperson for the deputation will be invited to speak 
 up to five minutes on the subject matter. The community council will debate 
 the deputation and at the conclusion of the deputation the chair will seek the 
 consent of councillors to debate the subject. Councillors may move motions 
 and amendments without prior notice if the subject does not relate to a report
 on the agenda. The meeting can decide to note the deputation or provide 
 support if requested to do so. The community council shall not take any 
 formal decision(s) on the subject raised unless a report is on the agenda 
 
5. Any relevant resource or community impact issues will be contained in the 
 comments of the strategic director. 
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
6. The deputation shall consist of no more than six persons, including the
 spokesperson. 
 
7. Only one member of the deputation shall be allowed to address the 
 meeting, her or his speech being limited to five minutes. 
 
8. Councillors may ask questions of the deputation, which shall be answered 
 by their spokesperson or any member of the deputation nominated by her 
 or him for up to five minutes at the conclusion of the spokesperson’s 
 address. 
 
9. If more than one deputation is to be heard in respect of one subject there 
 shall be no debate until each deputation has been presented. The monitoring 
 officer shall, in writing, formally communicate the decision of the meeting to 
 the person who submitted the request for the deputation to be received. 

 
 
 
 

18



SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Comments of the Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure   
 
10. N/A. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Written correspondence from the  
Save Camberwell Green Community 
Orchard Campaign 

160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1P 5LX 

Beverley Olamijulo 
020 7525 7234 
 

 
 
APPENDIX 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 A proposed list of streets to be consulted  
Appendix 2 A non-exhaustive list of suggestions of potential 

changes 
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Lead Officer Alexa Coates, Principal Constitutional Officer 
Report Author Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer 
Version Final 
Dated 11 April 2012 
Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Strategic Director of Communities, Law 
& Governance  

No No 

Finance Director No No 
Strategic Director of 
Environment and Leisure  

No No 

Date final report sent to the Constitutional Team 17 April 2012 
 

19



Feedback about issues raised at previous community council meetings 
 

Question Response 
 

Question raised at meeting on 6 March 2012  
 
Wheelchair users could not use the pool at 
Camberwell Leisure Centre because the 
Changing Rooms did not fit a wheelchair 
making the pool not accessible.  I said I was 
certain that the pool was fully accessible.  
Although another resident confirmed the Family 
Changing room was accessible to wheel chair 
users.  The cabinet member, Cllr Veronica 
Ward agreed to chase this up with a response 
at the next meeting. 
 
 
 

 

The refurbishment works at Camberwell leisure Centre 
conform to DDA (Disability Discrimination Act 1005). 

I would be interested to find out from the person who 
made these comments what they were specifically 
referring to when they said  that their wheelchair did 
not fit? We would be very keen to address and resolve 
where possible. 

You may recall some time ago (last September) about 
an enquiry from a customer that went to the press and 
put on their blog that the changing area was 
inaccessible. We made the following statement, 
however if this person is referring to something 
different then it would be useful to know what it is.  

We can confirm that all the refurbishment work 
conforms to DDA (Disability Discrimination Act 1005) 
and specifically: 

• Doors to both Accessible Changing Rooms 
G.037 and G.038 were designed to be 
1000mm wide, in accordance with guidelines in 
creating accessible buildings (known as 
Approved Document M). 

• Door to the Accessible Changing Area itself 
were designed to be 1000mm wide, as above. 

• All doors from the centre entrance for the 
Accessible Change Area are either double or 
'door plus a half leaf'.  

• Ceiling height within Accessible Change G.037 
is lower than desired, however all efforts were 
made to maximise available floor to ceiling 
heights, given the constraints of the Grade II 
listed structure.  

• Changing room doors were selected to ensure 
their resilience in a wet environment. Larger 
width doors (to better accommodate those in 
wheelchairs or who have limited mobility) are 
inherently heavier than those of a standard 
width, however in accordance with guidelines, 
we did not include door closers as these may 
disadvantage many people who have limited 
upper body strength, are pushing prams or are 
carrying heavy objects.  

Tara Quinn, Leisure Contract & Facilities Manager, 
Environment Dept 

 

Agenda Item 9
20



 
Camberwell Community Council 

 
Tuesday 6 March 2012 

 
Public Question form 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please give this form to Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, or Grace 
Semakula, Community Council Development Officer 
 

 
Your name: 
 
 
Your mailing address: 
 
 
What is your question? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

21



 
 
 

  

 
 
Item No.  

10 
 

 
 

Classification 
Open 

Date:  
25 April 2012 
 

Meeting Name: 
Camberwell Community 
Council  

Report title: 
 

Cleaner Greener Safer Revenue Fund 2012/13 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

Camberwell Green, Brunswick Park &  
South Camberwell.  

From: 
 

Stephen Douglass, Head of Community 
Engagement.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. That the Camberwell Community Council allocates £30,000 of the Cleaner, 

Greener, Safer (CGS) revenue fund 2012 -13. The projects to be considered for 
allocation are set out in Appendix 1. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 
2. A Cleaner, Greener, Safer revenue fund 2012 -13 consisting of £210,000 across 

the borough, with an allocation of £10,000 per ward,  has been introduced as part 
of the budget strategy agreed at the council assembly meeting on the  29 February 
2012. 

 
3. The aim of this fund is to give community councils decision making powers over 

significant amounts of revenue funding that they can allocate to meet locally 
determined priorities. It is anticipated that the availability of the revenue fund will 
enhance and complement the effectiveness of the Capital Fund. 

 
4. On 1 March 2012 the Leader of the Council delegated the executive function to 

each community council to take the Cleaner, Greener, Safer Revenue Funding 
decisions in their areas.   

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  

 
5. The community councils will use the criteria set out below for the allocation of this 

funding.  
 

a. Proposals that make an improvement to an area on the basis of making it 
cleaner, greener or safer or a combination. 
 

b. CGS applications from the capital round which were ruled out because they 
were revenue applications. 
 

c. The revenue fund could be used to meet the revenue costs associated with 
a CGS capital award. 

 
d. A community council may choose to allocate some or all of their revenue 

resources to their CGS capital allocations. 

Agenda Item 10
22



 
 
 

  

 
 

e. Subject to the availability of resources, the revenue fund may be used to 
buy services from the council. 

 
6. While the allocation is based on £10,000 per ward, a community council can if it 

chooses decide to aggregate all or part of the funding and spend more than 
£10,000 per ward. 

 
7. Community councils will be free to indicate whether they would like expenditure to 

be an ongoing commitment over more than one financial year or spending over a 
fixed timescale for a one-off project.  Commitments will be subject to final 
agreement of the council budget and a decision by each community council on an 
annual basis. 

 
8. As with any executive decision taken by community councils this is subject to the 

council’s existing overview and scrutiny arrangements. 
 

Delivery  
 

9. Once the community council has made their selections by the method of their 
choice they will be designed and delivered as soon as possible in 2012/13. Any 
under spends or projected overspends will be reported back to Community Council 
for resolution or reallocation. 

 
10. In the event that there are any positive decisions in respect of the proposals for 

[Marvell House, Camberwell BID and Camberwell Leisure Centre] there will need 
to be further considerations as to the amounts and the recipients 

 
Community Impact Statement 

 
11. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of 

involvement of local people in the democratic process. Community Councils take 
decisions on local matters including environmental improvement and community 
safety as well as consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that affect 
the area. 

 
12. An explicit objective within community councils is that they be used to actively 

engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse local 
communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. The Cleaner Greener Safer 
programme is an important tool in achieving community participation. 

 
13. In fulfilling the above objectives that community councils have of bringing together 

and involving Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also been 
given to the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the council 
to have due regard when taking decisions that  need to: Having due regard to the 
need to advance equality of opportunity is further defined in s.149 as having due 
regard to the need of 

 
a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 

characteristic 
b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic 

23



 
 
 

  

c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or any other activity in which they are under-
represented 

 
Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.  
 
Resource implications 

 
14. The total cost of the CGS Revenue Fund is part of the Budget process for 2012/13 

agreed by Council Assembly.  Any costs incurred in implementing this fund will be 
met within existing resources. 

Policy implications 
 

15. The CGS Revenue Fund is fully aligned with the Council’s policies toward 
sustainability, regeneration and community engagement. 

 
Consultation 

16. Decisions will reflect longstanding ward priorities and may be complementary to 
the decisions made in the CGS Capital fund allocation. In this first year of the 
scheme consultation will take place at the Community Council meetings and will 
therefore be an integral part of the decision making process.  In future years 
consultation will be a key part of developing and identifying projects for funding and 
considering whether to proceed with indicative expenditure. 

 
Legal Implications 
 
17. The Local Government Act 2000 [as amended] ('the Act') gives the leader the 

power to delegate any executive function to whoever lawfully can undertake the 
function. The allocation of the Cleaner, Greener, Safer revenue fund ('CGS) is an 
executive function. 

 
18. Community councils are 'area committees' within the meaning of the Act and 

executive functions can be delegated to them by the leader. 
 

19. In allocating funding under the CGS community councils must have regard to the 
council’s equality duties set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The report 
author has demonstrated how those duties have been considered in the body of 
the report at paragraphs 12 in the Community Impact Statement. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
The Cleaner, Greener, Safer 
Revenue Fund Decision Making 
Report sent to the Leader of the 
Council on 23 March 2012 
 

Southwark Council 
Communities, Law & 
Governance 
160 Tooley Street 
London  SE1 2QH 

 

Grace Semakula 

020 7525 4928 

 

24



 
 
 

  

APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Camberwell Community Council CGS Revenue Fund 2012-13 

projects for consideration  

 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Lead Officer Stephen Douglass, Head of Community Engagement  
Report Author Darryl Telles, Neighbourhoods Manager 
Version Final 
Dated 15 April 2012 
Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Strategic Director of Communities, Law 
& Governance  

Yes Yes 

Finance Director No No 
Cabinet Member  No No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 16 April 2012 
 
 

25



Appendix 1: Camberwell Community Council Cleaner Greener Safer Revenue Fund 2012 proposals for consideration

Proposal Name Ward Location Idea Cost
Entry phone system Camberwell Green Marvell House, Elmington Estate This proposal of entry phones would benefit the  

people who live in the 45 flats at Marvell House. As 
other people have been causing anti-social behaviour  
which is a health and safety issue.A walkabout has 
been carried out by the local MP and  Councillor  
Dixon-Fyle

It is estimated that this will be £27k. 
However clarification needs to be sought 
on the tendering procedure.

Sceaux Gardens 
T&RA. Youth Club to 
be opened

Brunswick Park Sceaux Gardens T&RA This proposal would contribute towards the youth 
activities on the Sceaux Gardens Estate. The outdoor 
sports equipment will contribute towards the provision 
of youth activities

£500

Camberwell Scout 
Group

Brunswick Park Sceaux Gardens This proposal will enable the scout group members to 
integrate and learn different tasks in this social and 
recreational environment. To provide a 1 week 
summer camp and additional  activities

£1,000.00

Camberwell Scout 
Group

Brunswick Park Wells Way Triangle This proposal will contribute to the environment at 
Wells Way, by having community planting days for 
young people to participate and be involved

£500

Camberwell Youth 
Conference, 
including youths who 
are carers for adults 

All Wards Camberwell

The proposal would support a Camberwell Youth 
Conference for young people, including young carers. 
To include venue,refreshments,transport for those 
requiring it and to ensure young people attend, and 
contributors. The agenda will include a session on 
young carers-the agenda will be built up with the youth 
council and any appropriate others. The Camberwell 
Youth Conference, will have proposals coming from 
the youths and therefore there must be funds to meet 
some of these proposals coming from the youth. 
Whilst we don’t know what they will be they could 
suggest a series of activities in or out of London aimed 
at offering respite to young carers

£5000. The funding includes money to 
support any proposal from the young 
people.[There will be consultation with The 
Southwark Young Carers.]

 Part-Time 
Camberwell BID 
officer

All Wards Camberwell

This proposal is for an officer to promote the economic 
development and engage with local businesses in 
Camberwell. To improve the environment and well-
being of Camberwell. To promote people, places and 
services. Also a place for people to invest,live,work 
and enjoy leisure time.

It is estimated that the full year costs will 
be £45,000 (including on costs). However 
clarification needs to be sought with 
Economic Development.

Camberwell Leisure 
Centre-maintenance 
works to front façade

Camberwell Green
Camberwell Leisure Centre,Artichoke 
Place

This proposal is for the proposed repair and 
maintenance works. To include painting of windows 
and façade would form part of a more extensive 
restoration. Provisional costs from the contractor to 
undertake the works. Scaffolding to be in place.

The current contractor costs [Buxtons] are 
in the region of 40k. Project management 
and internal costs. Total £50K

26



 

 
 
 

1 

  

 
Item No.  

11. 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
25 April 2012 

Meeting Name: 
Camberwell Community Council 
 

Report title: 
 

Local parking amendments  

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All wards within Camberwell Community Council 

From: 
 

Head of Public Realm 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. It is recommended that the following local parking amendments, detailed in the 

appendices to this report, are approved for implementation subject to the outcome 
of any necessary statutory procedures: 

 
• Abbotswood Road  -  Do not install at any time waiting restrictions 

 
• Grove Park – Install at any time waiting restrictions 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
2. This report presents proposals for a number of local parking amendments, which 

are reserved to the Community Council for decision under Part 3H of the 
constitution. 

 
3. The origins and reasons for the proposals are discussed in the main body of the 

report.  
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
Abbotswood Road - 1112Q4011 
 
4. On 7 January 2012 an officer from public realm carried out a site visit to ascertain 

the requirement for at any time waiting restrictions (double yellow lines).   
 
5. This investigation followed an enquiry by Councilor Ward who raised a matter on 

behalf of a constituent of Abbotswood Road.  It was reported that parking was 
“taking place just past the little roundabout on either side of Abbotswood Road 
itself” and they were “concerned that emergency vehicles will not get through when 
people park in this way”. The enquiry asked whether double yellow lines should be 
extended. 

 
6. During the site visit it was noted that there were no vehicles parking in this stretch 

of Abbotswood Road (photos in Appendix 1).  
 
7. The road is reasonably straight in this location (the bend and small hill already has 

double yellow lines) giving good forward visibility for vehicles should they need to 
overtake a parked car. 

 
8. The road is approx 5.5m in width.  An average car is 1.8m in width therefore it is 

unlikely that two cars would park on opposite sides of the road to one another 

Agenda Item 11
27



 

 
 
 

2 

  

without realising they were causing serious obstruction, an existing (police) offence 
even in the absence of double yellow lines.  

 
9. In view of the above, it is recommended that the community council does not 

approve the introduction of at any time waiting restrictions (double yellow lines) at 
this location but that the council should reconsider this should any further reports or 
evidence be supplied that demonstrates obstructive parking at this location. 

 
Grove Park - 1112Q4014 
 
10. Public realm received correspondence from the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) 

reporting obstructive parking at the entrance to their property at No.113 Grove 
Park.  They requested that at any time waiting restrictions (double yellow lines) be 
installed.  

 
11. The MPS have occupied this site since 1926.  The property lies behind residential 

properties on Grove Park and is accessed via a private road adjacent to 112 Grove 
Park and two blocks of flats. 

 
12. Large Vehicles need to access the site and include 7.5 tonne, extra wide vehicles 

and an extended "Sprinter" van, over 6 metres long, making it essential that the 
drivers have the full width of the access road available to turn out onto Grove 
Park.  

 
13. The problem is that vehicles are being parked too close to corners on either side of 

our access road and they prevent larger vehicles entering or leaving the site. 
 
14. It is stated that there are vehicles parked over the corners of the access road on a 

daily basis and as the vehicles are different every day, they do not believe that they 
belong to residents but most likely belong to commuters using Denmark Hill 
station. 

 
15. An officer from the public realm visited the site and noted that although there were 

vehicles parked very close to the entrance they were not obstructing the access or 
egress on this occasion. 

 
16. In view of the nature of the correspondence and in the knowledge that parking 

demand is high in this street (which often leads to inconsiderate/obstructive 
parking) it is recommended that a short length (2.5m on either side of the entrance) 
of at any time waiting restriction (double yellow lines) be installed at the entrance to 
No.113 as shown in appendix 2. 

 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
17. The recommendations contained within this report are consistent with the polices 

of the Parking and Enforcement Plan and the Transport Plan 2011, particularly: 
 

Policy 1.1 – pursue overall traffic reduction 

Policy 4.2 – create places that people can enjoy 

Policy 8.1 – seek to reduce overall levels of private motor vehicle traffic on our 
       streets 

18. The proposal(s) will support the council’s equalities and human rights policies and 

28



 

 
 
 

3 

  

will promote social inclusion by:  
 

• Providing improved access for emergency vehicles, refuge vehicles, residents 
and visitors 

• Improving sight lines for all road users  
• Improving junction and pedestrian safety, especially those with limited mobility 

or visual impairment; and 
 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT 
 
19. The policies within the Parking and Enforcement Plan are upheld within this report 

have been subject to an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA). 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

20. All costs arising from implementing the proposals, as set out in the report, will be 
fully contained within the existing local parking amendment budget. 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
21. No informal (public) consultation has been carried out. Where consultation with 

stakeholders has been completed, this is described within the main body of the 
report. 

 
22. Should the community council approve the item(s), statutory consultation will take 

place as part of the making of the traffic management order.  A proposal notice will 
be erected in proximity to the site location and a press notice will be published in 
the Southwark News and London Gazette.  If there are objections a further report 
will be re-submitted to the community council for determination. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Transport Plan 2011 Southwark Council 

Environment 
Public Realm 
Network Development 
160 Tooley Street 
London 
SE1 2QH 

Online: 
http://www.southwark.gov.
uk/info/200107/transport_p
olicy/1947/southwark_trans
port_plan_2011  

Tim Walker  

(020 7525 2021) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

29



 

 
 
 

4 

  

APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Abbotswood Road - photos of site 
Appendix 2 Grove Park - proposed At any time waiting restrictions 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Tim Walker, Senior Engineer 
Report Author Michael Herd, Transport and projects Officer 

Version Final 
Dated 12 April 2012 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Strategic Director for Communities, Law 
and Governance 

No No 

Finance Director No No 
Cabinet Member  No No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 16 April 2012 
 

30



Appendix 1
32



Appendix 1
32



Appendix 2
34



Appendix 2
34



  
CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2011-12 
NOTE:  Original held by Constitutional Team (Community Councils) all amendments/queries 
  to Beverley Olamijulo Tel: 020 7525 7234 
 
 
Name No of 

copies 
Name No of 

copies 
 
To all Members of the Community Council 
 
Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair)                                
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice Chair)                     
Councillor Kevin Ahern                                               
Councillor Stephen Govier 
Councillor Peter John                                                 
Councillor Right Revd Emmanuel 
Oyewole                 
Councillor Ian Wingfield                                              
Councillor Veronica Ward                                           
Councillor Mark Williams 
 
 
External 
 
Libraries (Camberwell) 
Local History Library 
 
Press 
 
Southwark News 
South London Press 
 
Members of Parliament 
 
Harriet Harman, MP 
Tessa Jowell, MP 
 
Officers 
 
Constitutional Officer (Community 
Councils) 2nd Floor Hub 4, 160 Tooley St.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
 
 
 
 
1 
1 
 
 
 
 
1 
1 
 
 
 
 
1 
1 
 
 
 
 
31 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Borough Commander  
Southwark Police Station 
323 Borough High Street 
London SE1 1JL 
 
 
 
Others 
Camberwell Area Housing Office 
Shahida Nasim, Audit Commission 
 
 
 
Total: 
 
Dated:  2 March 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 
1 
 
 
 
53 
 
 

 


	Agenda
	
	Language  Needs

	5 Minutes
	6 Community announcements
	7 Deputations/Petitions
	9 Public Question Time
	Public Question Form

	10 Cleaner Greener Safer Revenue Fund
	Camberwell CGS Revenue Fund - Appendix 1

	11 Local parking amendments
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 2

	

